
  

 
7551 Court Street · P.O. Box 217 · Elizabethtown, New York 12932 

Telephone (518) 873-3332 · Fax (518) 873-3339 
                

 
Daniel L. Palmer              Linda M. Wolf 

County Manager                   Purchasing Agent 

 

TO:  All Bidders 
 

FROM: Linda Wolf, CPA, Purchasing Agent 
 

DATE: October 4, 2023 
 

SUBJECT:  Addendum #1 RFP SENIOR MEAL PROGRAM SERVICES 
 

This Addendum, issued to bid document holders of record, indicates changes to the bid documents for 

the Senior Meal Program Services RFP Opening October 18, 2023. 

 

PLEASE NOTE the following Questions and Answers: 
 
QUESTION:  Can vendors be provided with the last 12 months (August 1, 2022 – August 31, 2023) of utility 
bills for all sites in which the vendor is responsible for such services? 
 
ANSWER:  In 2022, our current sub-contractor budgeted $19,505 for utility services and in 2023, they 
budgeted $19,000.00 
 
QUESTION:  Does the county pay for the vehicle insurance, registration, inspections, and replacement 
vehicles? Or will those items be the responsibility of the incoming vendor? 
 
ANSWER:  The cost of vehicle insurance, registration, inspections, and all repairs are the responsibility of the 
vendor to pay.  Replacement vehicles would be funded by Essex County Office for the Aging.  Please note that 
the vendor is responsible, at their own expense and cost, to keep all equipment in good repair, condition, and 
working order and shall furnish all parts, mechanisms, and devices required to keep the equipment in good 
mechanical order. 
 
QUESTION:  Can vendors be provided with the last 12 months of menus (August 1, 2022 – August 31, 
2023)? 
 
ANSWER:  See attached menus that have been used by the current provider. 
 
QUESTION:  Can vendors be provided with a complete inventory of existing meal transportation equipment, 
including but not limited to coolers, transport containers for HD and Congregate meals? 
 
ANSWER:  Currently the central kitchen has 30+ Coleman (or equivalent brand) coolers that are used to 
transport chilled meals.  Also, there are currently multiple Electric, One and Two Compartment, Meal Transport 
containers. 
 
QUESTION:  Are vendors responsible for providing disposables for congregate sites.  If so, will vendors be 
allowed to bill the OFA separately for these items.  
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ANSWER:  Disposable materials should be limited at the Congregate dining locations apart from napkins.  It 
would be the expectation that meals are served in/on dishes that are to be washed and re-used.  Each 
congregate dining center has these dishes on-site. 
 
QUESTION:  Are vendors responsible for providing cleaning supplies for the congregate sites?  If so, will 
vendors be allowed to bill the OFA separately for these items?  
 
ANSWER:  The site manager at each Congregate site would be expected to keep the site cleaned and to 
follow all the NYS Department of Health Disinfecting guidelines.  The cost of cleaning materials would be at 
the expense of the vendor. 
 
QUESTION:  Can vendors be provided with a complete inventory of hotel pans, sheet pans and pots currently 
in use in the central kitchen? 
 
ANSWER:  The central kitchen has an adequate number of hotel pans, sheet pans, and pots that are in good 
condition. 
 
QUESTION:  Are vendors responsible for paying the County’s dietitian costs? 
 
ANSWER:  Essex County Office for the Aging contracts with a Registered Dietician and that cost is not the 
responsibility of the vendor. 
 
QUESTION:  In the central kitchen, is internet and phone service provided by the county or is that part of the 
utility expenses? 
 
ANSWER:  At the central kitchen, the internet and phone service is not provided by the county and it would 
be an expense that the vendor is responsible for.  In 2022, the current vendor budgeted $9,000 for 
telephone/communications for all sites and the central kitchen and in 2023, $8,000 was budgeted. 
 
QUESTION:  Can the County provide the 12 months of each vehicle’s service records (August 1, 2022 – 
August 31, 2023). 
 
ANSWER:  Currently all Nutrition vehicles are maintained by the mechanics at the Essex County Highway 
Department and the responsibility of these costs is the vendor.  Each vehicle is serviced every 5,000 miles, 
gets a NYS inspection annually, has general maintenance performed (brakes, etc.) as needed, and has 
studded tires installed each winter and then all-season tires in the spring. 
 
QUESTION:  Can the County provide the routes, with round trip mileage, for both HDM and congregate sites?  
 
ANSWER:  Congregate sites are delivered to on the Home Delivered Meal routes.  The approximate route trip 
mileage for each route is:  Schroon Lake – 135; Lake Placid – 125; Jay – 122; Keeseville – 93; Elizabethtown – 
85; Ticonderoga – 80; Crown Point – 65; Port Henry 1 – 47; Port Henry 2– 45; and Willsboro – 30  
 
QUESTION:  Can vendors receive the recipes used to produce meals for your senior meal program?  
 
ANSWER:  Standardized recipes are used for current meals planned on each menu.  It is not expected that 
the incoming vendor utilize the same meal patterns as currently is being used.  The current vendor budgeted 
$300,000.00 for raw food costs in 2022 and $280,000.00 in 2023. 
 
QUESTION:  Is the incoming vendor responsible for the replacement of kitchen equipment such as ovens, 
cooktops, kettles, steamers, etc?  If so, can the County include the condition of each piece of equipment along 
with the inventory requested above?  



  

 
 
 
ANSWER:  The incoming vendor would not be responsible for replacement of kitchen equipment such as 
ovens, cooktops, etc.  Essex County would budget for the cost of these items separately from the contract 
with the incoming vendor 
 
QUESTION:  Does the County anticipate any changes happening with the menu pattern or meal service 
operation during the term of the contract?  
 
ANSWER:  The only potential change to the meal service operation would be to have a contractual 
relationship with a vendor that could provide drop shipped refrigerated meals.  This contract would 
supplement the meal service operation provided by the incoming vendor. 
 
As described in the RFP, the incoming vendor shall submit menus and prepare foods that use a variety of 
nutrient-dense foods and beverages within and among basic food groups while choosing foods that limit intake 
of saturated fats and have no trans fats and little added sugars and salt.  Menus will be planned by the 
Contractor, in collaboration with the ECOFA RD and subject to approval from the Director of ECOFA.  Menus 
must meet the nutritional requirements outlined in the RFP and must be analyzed by the contractor and then 
approved by the OFA RD and the Director of ECOFA.  Menus will be prepared on a 21-day cycle menu, and will 
change on a quarterly basis.  Contractor’s recipes will be available to ECOFA for approval and to ensure 
accurate nutritional analysis of the menu components. 
 
QUESTION:  Will the County continue to use volunteers to perform identified services if a private vendor is 
awarded this contract, or should the vendor be prepared to assume all responsibilities currently performed by 
volunteers?  
 
ANSWER:  The current contractor utilizes volunteers from Americorps Seniors – RSVP.  It will be the vendor’s 
responsibility to explore how volunteers could be used to supplement the program. 
 
QUESTION:  Can the County clarify whether vendors are responsible to man each congregate location and 
serve meals, in addition to meal productions and delivery 
 
ANSWER:  This RFP requests proposals for the meal production and delivery of home delivered meals and the 
meal production and the operation of the congregate sites which would require each site to have a site 
manager. 
 
QUESTION:  What is the current annual rent for each Congregate site? 

 
ANSWER:  The current annual rents are:  Ausable Forks - $3,600.00; Elizabethtown - $1,500.00; 
Essex/Willsboro - $2,400.00; Keeseville - $1,920.00; Lake Placid - $4,260.00; Minerva - $600.00; Newcomb - 
$780.00; Port Henry - $3,000.00; Schroon Lake - $3,300.00; Ticonderoga - $4,260.00; and Wilmington - 
$3,600.00. 
 
QUESTION:  What are the current staffing levels? 
 
ANSWER:  The current vendor budgeted the following positions in 2023: One (1) Director; One (1) Food 
Service Coordinator; One (1) Transportation Supervisor; One (1) Cook Supervisor; Two (2) Cooks; One (1) Site 
Manager/Cook/Food Transporter; Ten (10) Site Managers; Twelve (12) Food Transporters; One (1) Nutrition 
Aide; and Two (2) Dishwashers. 
 
QUESTION:  What is the current Holiday Schedule for Essex County?* 
 
ANSWER:  The current Holiday Schedule is:  New Year's Day; Martin Luther King Day; Presidents Day;  
 



  

 
 
 
Memorial Day; Juneteenth; Independence Day; Columbus Day; Veterans Day; Thanksgiving; Day after 
Thanksgiving; and Christmas. 
 
* When a holiday falls on a Saturday, employees shall be given Friday off. When a holiday falls on a Sunday, 
employees shall be given Monday off. 
 
QUESTION:  What is the current route schedule? 
 
ANSWER:  Following is the current route schedule (there are slight variations each day due to additions and 
deletions of home delivered meal clients): 
 
Minerva/Schroon Lake/Newcomb – 135 miles (Currently, this route delivers bulk food to Schroon Lake, 
Minerva and Newcomb sites on Tuesday and Thursday for site managers to prepare meals for the week; in 
Minerva, the food transporters deliver the meals to home delivered meal clients on Tuesday and Thursdays 
when in the area delivering bulk food to the congregate site, volunteers deliver home delivered meals Monday 
- Friday in Schroon Lake and the site manager delivers home delivered meals in Newcomb, Monday - Friday). 
 
Lake Placid – 125 miles (Currently delivers to all Lake Placid home delivered meals clients on Monday - 
Friday, delivers to the site (when opened) on Monday - Friday, delivers to Saranac Lake home delivered meal 
clients on Monday - Thursday, and to Bloomingdale clients, once a week).  
 
Jay/Wilmington – 122 miles (Currently delivers the bulk food to the congregate site at Ausable Forks on 
Monday and Wednesdays, delivers the bulk food to the congregate site at Wilmington on Tuesday and 
Thursdays, and delivers meals to all home delivered clients in the Jay and Wilmington area) 
 
Essex/Keeseville – 93 miles (Currently delivers meals to all home delivered meal clients and to the 
congregate site in Keeseville on Monday - Friday, to Willsboro/Essex congregate site daily and a few home 
delivered meals in the town of Essex)  
  
Elizabethtown/Lewis/Westport – 85 miles (Currently delivers home delivered meals to individuals in 
Elizabethtown, Lewis and Westport) 
 
Ticonderoga – 80 miles (Currently delivers to the congregate site Monday - Friday, to home delivered meal 
clients in Ticonderoga Monday - Friday and meets the Ti 3 volunteer at the Ticonderoga congregate site 
Monday - Friday)  
 
Crown Point – 65 miles (Currently delivers meals in and around the town of Crown Point on Monday - Friday) 
 
Port Henry 1 – 47 miles (Currently delivers to home delivered meal clients in and around the town of Moriah 
on Monday - Friday, delivers meals to the Moriah Congregate site and meets the PH2 driver, Monday - Friday)  
 
Port Henry 2 – 45 miles (Currently this driver is funded by the town of Moriah. The PH2 driver meets the Port 
Henry 1 driver at the Moriah Congregate site and delivers meals in Port Henry area on Monday - Friday) 
 
Willsboro – 30 miles (Currently this driver is funded by the town of Willsboro. The town of Willsboro driver 
meets the Essex/Keeseville driver at the Essex/Willsboro site and picks the meals up from that driver. The 
town of Willsboro driver then delivers to home delivered meal clients in the town of Willsboro).  
 

 

END OF ADDENDUM # 1 
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